Board of Selectmen during the Tercentenary year,
Roger W. Boyd and Daniel J. Hart,

| to r, Donald E.

Smith, chairman

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

CHELMSFORD, MASS.

A PROCLAMATION

GOVERNMENT

The basic structure of state
and local government derives
from the charter given on
March 4, 1629 by Charles I to
the New England Company, naming
it ‘The Governor and Company
of the Massachusetts Bay in
New England.’ This company had
sent John Endicott and fifty
settlers to Salem in 1628 and
was_a successor to the Dor-
chester Adventurers who estab-
lished a fishing settlement at
Gloucester in 1623.1ts charter
was similar in form to those

of other business corporations

of the time. The ‘freemen,’
who would be called stockhold-
ers now, annually elected a
Governor, Deputy Governor, and
Assistants who constituted the

Whereas, the Town of Chelmsford, Massachusetts, having been incorporated
under the laws and with the authorization of the General Court, in 1655, we, the
elected members of the Board of Selectmen, do officially proclaim that a public
observance of the 300th Anniversary of said incorporation shall be held during the

year 1955 ®

Whereas, such observance shall be conducted with proper exercises and
whereas, such exercises shall be under the jurisdiction of a committee of towns-

people, and referred to, as the General Committee.

In thirty-five years after the pilgrims landed at Plymouth, the hardy,
stalwart sons of Chelmsford, "seeked and petitioned for the incorporation of their

town" and thereafter conducted her own govermment independently.

The memory of man does not dwell at great length on the events of yester-
year, but Chelmsford has dwelt and advanced her three centuries, contributing to

culture, science, and industry.

Ever and always the call for the defense of the

country, the commonwealth, the county, and the town, has been answered.

Chelmsford is proud of her history.

The year 1655 is a memorable one on our records. Let it ever be sacred

and motivate our lives.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

of the Town of Chelmsford to be affixed.

we have here=to set our hands and caused the seal

DONE at Chelmsford, Massachusetts, this thirteenth day of May in the year of our
lLord, nineteen hundred and fifty-five.

BOARD OF SELECTMEN

Court of Assistants’ or board
of governors. Freemen and as-
sistants met together in a
‘General’ Court or stockhold-
ers’ meeting at stated times
to transact important company
or colony business. As the
size of this group grew, it
became unwielding and a repre-
sentative system gradually
evolved. Eventually, instead
of there being a representative
from each town and city, re-
presentative districts were
set up much as they are today.

It had been customary for
the charter and at least a part
of the governing body of a
colonizing or trading company
to remain in England, but the
Virginia company’'s experience -
under such circumstances had
been unfavorable. From the
first it enjoyed only a lim-
ited self-government and its
charter and property were
later confiscated by the Crown.
To eliminate such a possi-
bility, the Puritan leaders
refused to leave for America
unless they could have full
control over the enterprise and
in 1629 at London at a meeting
of the Great and General Court,
it was voted to transfer char-
ter and government to New
England. John Winthrop was
elected governor and sailed on
Warch 29, 1630 in the Arbella,
which also carried the charter
and Wintnrop's fellow offi-
cials, The Arbella landed at
Salem on June 12, 1630. The
first meeting of the Court of
Assistants was held at Charles-
town on August 23, and the
General Court met at Boston in
October.

The presence of its charter
and government on this side of
the Atlantic made massachusetts
Bay practically independent of
English control and it remained
so until 1686. The charter
proved to be so workable as a
colonial constitution that
other colonies imitated it and
during the Revolution most of
the thirteen colonies framed
their state constitutions
along similar lines. The most
prominent feature of this
charter, which has become one
of our most cherished insti-
tutions, was the principle of
state elections. Representa-
tives, assistants, and even
the governor had to go before
the voters annually. This was
in great contrast to the Eng-
lish or Parliamentary system
which was dependent on the
sovereign’s will, and the
American system provided an
almost continuous check on
government executives and re-
presentatives as well.

The first elections in Massa-
chusetts Bay were by ‘show of
hands’' but soon the normal
corporate method of balloting
was adopted. Corn and beans
were used instead of white and
black balls to signify ‘yes’
and Tno' votes, but paper bal-
lots were later adopted.

These features of the old
government were preserved when
in 1691, Massachusetts became
a royal providence with a new
charter and a royal governor.
In 1780, when John Adams drafted
the constitution of the Com-
monwealth, he followed the
language and the spirit of the
company charter of 1629 as
closely as possible.

Democracy as we have it to-
day was not the goal of the
founding fathers. They wanted
to establish a commonwealth
where men could lead the good
life according to their own
interpretation of God's word.
It was not intended that every
Continued on thirteenth page




Members of the Board of Health,

Oliver A. Reeves and Edmund J. Welch,

left to right, Dr. Charles C. Farrington, chairman,

i . L

Chelmsford purchased its first rubbish collection truck

in 1953 and the Board of H

ealth has made weekly collec-

tions available to the town.

Small Pox Epidemic
Raged Unchecked
In Chelmsford

Small pox is now so effec-
tively controlled by vaccina-
tion that we pay scant atten-
tion to it, yet small pox
epidemics, raging unchecked in
the past, caused enormous
losses of 1ife in the 0ld World
and the New. The too-familiar
polio epidemics which the Salk
vaccine seems to hold promise
of conquering are to a slight
degree modern counterparts of
the recurrences of the earlier
‘distemper,” but in the 17th
and 18th centuries, when small
pox was so prevalent in this
country, there was less incen-
tive to find preventive mea-
sures for the disease was con-

sidered an act of God, and
there was also less hope of
finding such measures because
of the undeveloped state of
medical knowledge.

Small pox existed in China
in the 6th century and reached
England in the 13th century,
having been brought to Europe
by crusaders returning from
the Holy Land. It was a dis-
ease carried by persons and
sprang up quickly wherever it
was introduced. The Spanish
explorers brought it to America
about 1500, and some 125 years
later, John Winthrop reported
that a great majority of the
Indians withina 300-mile radi-
ous of Massachusetts Bay had
died of small pox which was
then still prevalent. There
were frequent epidemics in
Massachusetts during the co-

lonial and provincial periods,
and Boston suffered especially
heavily because many infected
ships came into its harbor.
Its population was also greater
and more concentrated than in
any other town so the infection
was more easily spread there.
Since the problem was greatest
in Boston, it was natural that
that town should take the first
steps toward its control. In
this, as in many other matters
concerning the welfare of the
whole province, Boston was the
leader, and the outlying dis-
tricts, profiting by her ex-
perience, could subsequently
adopt the measures she found
most workable.

In the beginning, fast days
were set apart early each year,
when work was forbidden and
prayers were offeredona vari-

ety of subjects. In 1678, for
example, they were ‘for con-
tinuance of peace, healing the
small pox, and for sundry of
our ministers tnat were lan-

required forthwitn to aid and
assist the selectmen of Boston,

., in disposing and removing
the said Widow Paige with her
son, daughter, and maid, and
cause each of them to be car-

gplsh%ng. and for other mer- ried down to Apple Island, or
cies.’ In 1687, the day was
> any other remote place of the
set apart because of ‘last ;
ar's drouEht fortabl town of Boston, as the said
i?nte? Eo.f 2 %ﬁéom oi a g selectmen shall direct; And to
i (HETOCTE S S OIS A impress men and boats, etc.,

colds,

of the year.’

During Boston’s fifth epi-
demic (1702), when about 300
died, thefirst legislation was
passed requiring the isolation
of small pox patients:

Whereas there is 4 man sick
of the small pox at the house
of Widow Paige at the North
end of Boston, and in order to
prevent the further spreading
of said distemper within the
said town, Cthe county sheriff
and the town constablé are

the small pox in some
places, and for all the mercies

as the occasion shall require.
Hereof fail not;....°

The Paige family was evi-
dently being isolated instead
of the sick man, and we do not
know what accommodations, if
any, were made for the family
on Apple Island or elsewhere.
We can assume that the patient
was provided with food and
nursing care if necessary,
probably at town expense.

In 1721, a sixth epidemic
began in Boston, and about one

Continued on tenth page

Compliments of

JOHNSTON'S BAKERY
HOME OF FINE BAKING

295 Westford St., Lowell

GL 2-4431

CONGRATULATIONS
LARSON'S DAIRY

1990 MIDDLESEX ST.

CHELMSFORD

GL 2-9758

Compliments of

Chelmsford
Trading Post
Tel. GL 3-5222

Congratulation on

Congratulation on

CHELMSFORD’S Compliments of RUSTY'S TUCKE & PARKER CO. CHELMSFORD’S
TERCENTENARY ‘ TERCENTENARY
FUNERAL HOME SERVICE STATION b Sl L& L
ERNES C. SULLIVAN Ghoiew G097 TRANSPORTATION
Director Middlesex Place P — 176 Appleton Street COMPANY
LOWELL, MASS. % BEREG
GL 3-1375 CHELMSFORD B
LOWELL, MASS. GL 3-3472
22 Fourth St., Lowell Tel. GL 7-7595
Congratulations on Your
Tel. GL 2-7937 Industrial CONGRATULATIONS 300TH ANNIVERSARY

EDMUND B.

189 Walter Street

KELTY CO.

Lowell, Mass.

HEATING CONTRACTORS

Commercial

Residential

HAYES OIL COMPANY

Ossie Haves - JosepH E. HarDMAN
Residents of Chelmsford

517 DUTTON ST.

LOWELL

GL 3-6961

ROGERS HALL
SCHOOL for GIRLS

(established 1892)
Boarding and Day Departments
Grades 9 through 12
College Preparatory and
General Courses
All Sports, Swimming Pool.
Many Social Activities
Mrs. Katharine W. MacGay
Principal

GL 2-5091




CHELMSFORD POLICE DEPARTMEMT---front row, left to right, Basil J. Larkin, Winslow
P. George, Chief Ralph J. Hulslander, Allan A. Adams, Edward F. Miner; second row,
left to right, James W. Birtwell, Francis Foster, Leo A. Roucher, George W. Marinel,
Leslie H. Adams, Jr.; rear row, left to right, Arthur F, Smith, Robert F. McAndrew,
Richard F. Campbell, walter W. Edwards, Jr., John B. Wrigley.
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CHIEF OF POLICE RALPH J. HULSLANDER

- :
i,

CHELMSFORD POLICE BAND:=---Pictured, Center front, John McEnaney, (Drum Carrier),
First row, | to r, James Gagnon, Basil Dixon, Robert Abrahamson, Raymond Cantara,
Ralph Hulslander (Chief of Police) Basil Larkin (Director of band), Frederick Crowe,
George Perzel, Donald Hankinson; Second row, | to r, Gregory Caron, John Leite,
John Flynn, Donald Heathcock, Sewell Bowers, Jr., Walter Larkin, Gerald Hardy, Jerry
Di rubbo; Third row, 1 to r, Jack Edwards, Alexander Gervais, Lawrence Day, Donald
Smith, Donald Caron, James Dunigan; Fourth row, 1 to r, Roger Proulx, George Marinel,
Wal ter Dinnigan, Raymond Morin, Walter Wilkins, Jr.

Chelmsford Police Band.

Chelmsford Police
Band Makes Initial
Appearance Sunday

The newly organized Chelms-
ford Police Band made its
initial appearance Sunday, May
29th when tney played prior
to and during the opening cere=-
monies for the Pony League
at Varney Playground.

The band, under tnedirection
of Sergeant Basil Larkin of
the regular force, is composea
of 30 regular and auxiliary
members. They are neatly
garhed in regular police uni-
forms and made a very smart
appearance Sunday. The band
was organized originally to
add to the Police Department’s
unit for the Tercentenary
parade. The group has now been
organized and some outdoor
summer concerts are now being
planned.

The organizing of a Police
Band is unique in this area
as only the larger cities have
enough men to be able to form
such a group. Chelmsford is
fortunate in having enouzn
qualified musicians to take
part in this endeavor and thus
becoming one of the only towns
north of Boston to have such
an organization,

Police Chief Ralph J. Huls-
lander has been in charge of
the fund raising campaign to
cuy tne necessary band equip-
ment, music, and regulation
uniforms. Chief Hulslander re-

ports that all of the uniforms
and other equipnent are now
paid for.

The committee which directs
the policy of the group con-
sists of baud members Jerry
Dirubbo,

Jokn J. Foley, Jr.,
and Walter Wilkins, Jr. with
assistance fromDirector Larkin
and Chief Hulslander. Any lo-

Valuation Of

Chelmsford

T. Val. Polls
1790 $ 9,512.75 299
1800 $ 11,816.10 322
1810 $ 12, 659. 10
1820 $ 15,993.98
1830 $355,751.00
1840 $443,684.77
1850 $958, 369.00
1860 $1,371, 136.00
1870 $1, 695, 075. 00
1880 $1461, 316.00
1890 $1, 772, 035.00
1900 $2, 448, 848.00
1910 $4, 524, 105,00
1915 $4,514, 610,00
1920 $6, 421, 540.00
1925 $7, 360, 800, 00
1930 $7,090, 615.00
1935 $6, 660, 706.00
1940 $7,018, 740. 00
1945 $7,714,306.00 3,026 8, 726
1950 $9.456.490.00 3.124 9.407
1954812, 608, 775.00 3,50211, 749

Pop.
1,144
1, 290
1,396
1,535
1,387
1,697
2.097
2,291
2,374
2,553
758 2,695
1,275 3,984
1,347 5,010
1,337 5,182
1,419 5,682
1,969 6,573
2,051 7,022
2,320 7,595
2,657 8,060

402
416
443
543
583
593
642

cal band nusicians over unigh
school age who are interested
in joining this organization
should contact the committee.
The following is a list of
the present band members by
sections: Clarinets: - Donald
Caron, Donald Coates, Richard
CeFreitas, Walter Dinnigan,
Jack Edwards, and John Foley,
Jr.; Trumpets: - Sewell Bowers,
Jr., Greg Caron, James Dunni-
gan, Gereld Hardy, Con Heath-
cock, Alexander Jarvis, Walter
Larkin. and Donald Smith: Alto
Horn: - Donald Enis; Baritone
Horn: - Ray Cantara, and Fred-
erick Crowe, Jr.; Saxapnones: =
Jerry Cirubbo, John Fiynn,
and Robert Oates. Trombones: -
Robert Abrahamson,-Basil Dixon
John [eite, and George Perzel;
Basses: - Jumes Gagnou and Don-
ald Hankinson; Drums: - Larry
Continued on fifteenth page

Part of the Chelmsford Police on Parade..




Front, | to r, William Shedd, Thomas Shedd, Donald Smith, Capt. Clarence

Dane, Arthur Cutter, Anthony Ferriera; second row, Edward Hoyt, Lt.Charles Front, 1 to r, Bradford Emerson, Capt. Ernest Byam, Edward Quinn, Chief
Jangraw, Ralph House, Roger Calder, Lt. Howard Christianson, Capt. George Allan Kidder, Ray Pickard, William Thayer; second row, | to r, George Dix-
Waite, Raymond Marchand; third row, | to r, Melmon Smith Forrest Philbrook, on, Warren Wetmore Thomas Miskell, James Robinson, Edward McGovern; third
Royce Parker, Charles Miller, Eugene Pudsey, George Baxendale, Capt. Asa row, | to r, Lionel Marchand, Capt. Roland Marr, George Parkhurst, Charles
Robey; fourth row, 1 to r, Ira Spaulding, Arthur House, John Hallberg,Neil Fuller, A. Louis Bennett; fourth row, 1 to r, Foster Braga, William Dutton,
Mooers, John Breen, Arthur Caster, Lt. Robert Spaulding. Farley Kemp, Wallace Greig, Morton Pickard.

Members of the Chelmsford Fire Departments as they marched in the Parade during the
celebration.

Chelmsford Fire pept. during celebration - also headquarters for celebration.

Congratulations on
@ R Chelmsford’s 300th Anniversary
eramies DUSOBOX CO. INC.
} GEO‘;(;;RT_N;’E:Z'E]:“WCHONSH 500 Sizes In Stock 24 Hour Service
The late Joseph D. Ryan wbo gave the fire department dAnyiking Vosr SKEpfer Niauils

fi fty years of service in fire fighting. He was Chief [TeEPHONE LowELL GL 24440
of District 2 for many years and retired at the age of |167 NorTH ROAD, CHELMSFORD, MASS. 69 WILLIE ST., LOWELL, MASS GL 2-1100

| 80 years.
S T !




Fire-en’ s Mu'ter One The competition gave each tub

a chance to put out a stream
0f Feature Events Of as far aspossible in a fifteen

Tercentenary Celebration ninute time limit. This con-
The Firemen’'s Muster held 8isted of building up pressure
on Saturday June 11th on the 1in the tub and then breaking
old Trotting park grounds was ©ben the nozzle when the crew
one of the outstanding events foreman felt the wind currents
of the entire Tercentenary W%ere with him. Some of the
celebration. The large crowd participating units sent out
in attendance at the parade 28 many as five different
slowly filed down to the mus- Streams in an attempt to place
ter grounds and by starting 1n the prize money that amoun-
time there was an excellent ted to some $1200.
crowd set to watch the after- The Gerry No. 5 unit from
noon's festivities. Marblehead, Mass.,was the tub
There were twelve units on that opened the action for the
hand ready for action as the &fternoon and they had a good
officials prepared to open the turn as they sent out the
competition. The hand tubs first prize winning stream for
were all in excellent condi- Class 2. Their stream carried
tion despite their age and it 196 and 11% inches. The Tor-
made the people on hand marvel Trent No. 1 from Bath, Maing
at how fires could have been took second place honors in
handled by these machines. Continued on fourteenth page

FIREMEN'S MUSTER COMMITTEE--left to right, James 0. Robinson, Edward Quinn, chairman
Chief Allan Kidder, George F. Waite, Edward Hoyt.

Gerry No. 5 getting ready to make a break when they get the
wind blowing in the right direction.

Water Polo during the Fireman's Muster.

B 4

This entry is trying another technique to get distance..

Gerry No. 5 of Marblehead at the Fireman's Muster.

Gerry No. 5 trying to set a mark which they did and won their class. Protection No. | of Newbury, Mass. at the Muster.



THE NEWSWEEKLY

In a small room in the rear of this building the Chelms-
ford Newsweekly was started. Located at Newfield Street
in the North section the publ isher saw the need to be
centrally located and the office was moved to the Center

section.

come. You may be sure that we
will do our best to make your
local paper more interesting
and more worthwhile with each
issue.

After sixteen years of pub-
lishing a newspaper it can be
told that before a—person goes
into newspaper work they must
convince themselves first that
they love work. With work on a
newspaper you do not know what
to expect, stories, advertis-
ing, pictures and renumeration
at the end of a week. Hours
do not mean eight hours a day
or forty hours aweek, it means
that you start a job and work
on it until it is completed
without regard for time. You
must learn to be able to con-

The entire NEWSWEEKLY staff
extends to the townspeople of
Chelmsford its heartiest con-
gratulations during their
300th anniversary year. These

make history and we are doing
our part towards the writing
of that history by reporting
each week some of the events--
great and small--which we think

Edward G. Krasnecki, Editor and Publisher, is responsi=-
ble for all material that is printed in the Newsweekly.
The cooperation of the members on the Newsweekly staff
is a great help as Wednesday evening arrives and the
newspaper pages are made up. Each story, picture and
advertisement is pasted into proper position on each

page and then taken to Offset Printing Inc.

in Lowell

some time after midnight for photography and actual
printing. The newspaper is completed some time before

noon the next day.

three centuries have provided
the town with a rich and
inspiring heritage. Now you
yourselves are helping to

Mrs. Frances Hartley, Business
Manager, actually runs the
newspaper office and her du-
ties are many. All work is
funnelled through her hands
before completion, she takes
most complaints as well as
compliments, makes arrange-
ments for assignments for
other members of the staff,
does the bookkeeping, writes
the checks, and does the bill-
ing. When she has free time
she also operates a Vari-typer
and sets ads.

are significant in the life
of the town--that is, in the
lives of Chelmsford people.

We are pleased with the in-
terest and cooperation you
have shown us during our 16
years of existence. This is
the first time that all of
those who are responsible for
putting out the NEWSWEEKLY
have met together asone groun.
that is, pictured together
as a group, and speaking with.
one voice, we hope that our
work will continue to merit
your support in the years to

Edgar P, Beorge, Sport Colum-
ist, contributes his sports
column "Short Sport Shots"
each week. Ed calls his shots
as he sees them and has been
responsible for much of the
sports interest in the town.

verse in almost any line of
business, must have an idea of
what is going to take place
before it happens, anticipate
what town officials may do or
not do, be a politician your-
self, he hard skinned in that
one day you are scum of the

Mrs. Mary Long, advertising
manager, can be heard on the
telephone by advertisers al-
most every day.

Ernest A. Pouliot, Official
Photographer who takes most
of the pictures for the News-
weekly. A wellknown figure
in the town,he is most welcome
at any occasion where pictures
are needed.

earth and on another day you
are placed amongst the heaven-
ly angels for the deeds you
perform in relating the news.
It has always been the policy
of this newspaper that news
knows no class, that every-
body is news.

A great day inChelmsford was
the birth of the Chelmsford
Newsweekly on May 2, 1940 when
Edward G. Krasnecki and Harry
VanDernoot started a weekly
newspaper in Chelmsford. Mr.
VanDernoot was the editor
while Mr. Krasnecki was the

NEWSGIST

The annual Memorial day exercises and parade took place in the
Centre last Thursday morning, with a program similar to that of other
years carried out by the patriotic organizations of the town.

complete story on page 7.

North Chelmsfod paid tribute to its war dead last Thursday with
appropriate exercises, parade and program, concluding with a catered
dinner served in the town hall.

compiete story on page T

Members of the children’s choir of the Central Baptist churrh held
their final rehearsal of the season last Wednesday afternoon at the
church vestry, followed by a party.

complete story on page 7.

—_—
The Stony Brook Hermit says that the weather last week was too
wet for even the fish. They complained to him bf nearly drowning.
completed story on page 2.
For those who like their news from the nation’s capitol in a con-
cise and readable column, we have just that every week written by
two of Washington’s outstanding correspondents, Ray Johnson and
Walter Pierce.
completed story on page 2
Fire destroyed a barn and garage at the Walter Boumil farm on
Dunstable road in North shortly before 4 A. M. last Friday morning,
but the Boumil house, only 15 feet away from the garage, was saved

by the local firemen under the direction of Chief Joseph Ryan.
conpleted story on page 6.

50 V
$6,00(

Town Meeting: |

The sum of $6000
town meeting heid

hall for the purpess

At a meeting held Friday night by representatives of the Episcopal, power grader for
Baptist and Congregational churches at the home of Rev. Charles W, wEpArtment i
Henry, it was decided to hold the community church picnic Saturday, The. meglnE
June 15, at Varnum Grove, Long Pond, Dracut.

conpleted story on page 6

The Centre Brownies held their final meeting of the season at
the post quarters last week, the mecting being held in the form of
a party.

Original format of the Chelmsford Newsweekly in its
of the 1940 Federal Census which shows Chelmsford wi
Another feature headlined was that fifty voters appr
must be present at any town meeting before any.busine
HMS CheImsford, a ship having the same name as this

a half before this country entered the war.

Miss Eleanor Parkhurst, Feature
Writer and Historian, who does
special stories and some edit-
orials. Her work on most of
the historical data in the
regular edition and the Ter-
centenary edition was a tre-
mendous task and should be
enjoyed by all townspeople.
She is our Historian,

. vertising solicitor. The sup-

business manager. The birth-
place was in anine foot square
room in the rear of a two
story cement building on New-
field Street in North Chelms-
ford. The life of this new
newspaper wasn’t given much
chance to survive by some of
the experts of the town and
for a while even the two own-
ers were convinced that it was
a big mistake but youth was
determined to fight it out.

Until September of 1940 the
Newsweekly was printed in
Everett and one of the great-
est thrills realized now was
that Lt. Governor Sumner G.
Whittier was in the pressroom
when the very first impression
of the first Newsweekly came
off the press. Whittier was at
that time an Alderman in Ever-
ett.

In September the Newsweekly
was printed in Lawrence by the
Lawrence Sunday Sun until
March 1941 when the printing
was again done in Everett.

In February the decision

had been reached that there
just wasn’t enough money in
a weekly newspaper for two and
Mr. VanDernoot sold out to Mr.
Krasnecki. Mr. VanDernoot is
now a feature writer for
Associated Press in Washing-
ton, D.C.

One of the first moves the
new Editor and Publisher made
was to obtain the services
of Edgar George as Sports Edi=
tor, Phoebe Murphy (now Phoebe
Killilea) as reporter and Mary
Sheehan (now Mary Long) as ad-

port given the paper from
that point on was most appre-
ciative. The paper had reached
the point where it was con-
sidered established. From a
financial angle ads. came in
from the New England Telephone
Company, Lowell Electric Light
Corp., Lowell gas Company,
probate court and land court
and local merchants gave the
paper a boost by advertising
in it. Only one advertiser
has appeared in every issue
published by the Chelmsford
Newsweekly, that is Saunders
Funeral Home of Lowell. We
certainly appreciate their
loyalty to us and the town of

Mrs. Florence Confort, vari-
typist, who prepares finished
copy for each edition of the
Newsweekly. This is one of the
machines used to set the
straiaht coov vou read.
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is of worth but truth, before which all men are equal.”

CHELMSFORD NEWSWEEKLY THURSDAY JUNE 8, 1940

PRICE 3 CENTS

s Returns
Population

rs Appropriate
In 15 Minutes

HMS Chelmsford
Seeing Service

In Second War

Approximately B5 men of the British Navy
today wear around their flat hats ribbons
bearing the name “H. M. 8, CHELMSFORD."

The ship, which has the name of this
town, is fighting her second war within less
than o generation. Last week, she took part
n bloody. fierce combat along the Flanders
rhe was pressed into service as
port to carry away men of the
es of the Allies.

The Chelmsford was chosen for such wérk

because she and her sisters are unique m
Census Returns: thise streamlined times, They are paddle-
| ab the special The Bureau of Census of the Department wheel warships. Sound ideas lay behind their
ght at the town of Cocmmerce has just announced that pre- ot icn, for by use of the wheels for
thasing a new timinary count of the population of Cheims- m instead of screw propellers, the
{ the highway ford has shown a total of 8,060 as of April are ideal mine sweepers, having less
1, 1940. draft than other ships, and far greater man-
#nded by some This figure shows an increase of 1,038 over euverability,
o 15 minutes, the population as of April 1, 1930, which It was because of tbese qualities that the
@ Wartant be- figure was set at 7.022. Mr. E. Francis Oday, sisters — Atherstone,
atlng vote, head of the local Census takers, announced Cheltenhaf, Chepstow, Harpenden, Banbury
efll replace the the preliminary figure this week, ald Melton—were cent to help evacuair the
Be, will have A zpecial aunotation on the fgure poinis trcops from Flanders. They were able 10 go
ments, ““h‘ . cut that this is a preliminary announcement hore where no dock existed, and
ected that with uf population subject to revision in the near thus relieve the strain at the latter points,
Ny fepartment tuture, {f such revision is found necessary. by taking off hundreds of men, under at-
sip . s
er editions. In this particular edition are thetresults

population of 8,060 as compared ‘to nearly 12,000 in 1955.
ted $6,000 in fifteen minutes. Today at least 200 voters
an be conducted. Still another feature was an account of
in the British Navy during World war Il about a year and

A

Mrs. Edward G.

Krasnecki,
Publisher's Assistant, can do
just about every job on the
paper. She is shown setting
Fototype for headlines and ad
display lines.

Mrs. Lydwin Bachelder, Special

Writer, is an authority on
clothing, being able to tell
a great deal of history from
the way clothing is made. Her
articles appeared in the re-
gular editions. She also re-
ported on Women's Day activ-
ities during the celebration
as well as other highlights.

Chelmsford.

Qur early existence could
not have been possible without
the help of the Lowell Sun,
Lowell Sunday Telegram, Cour-
ier Citizen, Evening Leader and
the L' Etoile.

In August of 1941 the Banner
Press in Townsend printed the
Newsweekly until Dec. 23, 1942
when the owner was inducted
into the Armed Services. Be-
fore entering the army the
paper was incorporated by
Atty. John H. Valentine and
suspended for the duration.
Up until the time the paper
was suspended free copies of
the paper were sent to all
servicemen from the town.

Being in the service for
four years did not change the
desire of Mr. Krasnecki to
publish a newsparer for on
Sept. 13, 1946, a second ven-
ture was made to publish a
newspaper in the town of
Chelmsford. This time, the
response of the people and ad-
vertisers was an indication

that a newspaper was wanted
and needed.

The personnel on the paper
then was Josephine McDonough
(now Mrs. Edward Krasnecki)
who took care of the business
end of the office. Phoebe
Murphy who was again reporter,
Edgar George as Sports Editor
again, Mary Long as advertis-
ing manager, and Mr. Krasnecki
as Editor and Publisher.

On July 3, 1947, Mr. Kras-
necki married Miss McDonough
and she continued to work in
the office.

In September 1947 the News-
weekly office was moved to the
Withington Building in Central
Square in Chelmsford Center.

In & year’'s time the cost of
printing the Newsweekly was
doubled and it meant either
raising the price of advertis-
ing or going out of business.
Fate was with the newspaper
for Mr. Krasnecki met an old
friend who had purchased a
Varityper.and after learning
what this machine could do,
the possibility of using this
machine for newspapers was

realized and a machine was
purchased. Mrs. Krasnecki and
Mrs. Louis Hannaford went to
Boston to learn how to operate
the machine., With the use of
this machine and Fototype, the
entire newspaper was set in
the office. Once pasted up In
proper position the pages had
to be brought to an offset
printer, The Banner Press in
Townsend, for photography and
presswork. The Newsweekly was
the first newspaper to be pub-
lished by this method and the
first edition using this meth-
od was published on October
23, 1947. Since that time
there have been many other
papers to go into the same
method of printing.

At first, the new type used
by the Newsweekly was not too

Mrs. Bernice Lewis, Vari-Ty-
pist, working on another vari-
typer and is setting some of
the straight copy to be used
in the newspaper. These ma-
chines are electric and have
a right and left justification
so that columns may be finished
even.

Mrs.
pondent, gives the paper that
personal touch as she reports
on West section events.

Frances Ricker, Corres-

good but time and experience
brought improvements. Quite
a coincidence was that the
Chicago Tribune printers went
on strike in November of 1947
and they used the same method
to combat the strike for near-
ly two years. About the same
time Boston newspapers con-
tacted us to learn more about
our methods of printing in
case a strike occured in Bos-
ton.

Pictures have been a great
factor with the Newsweekly and
we owe a great deal to Ernest
Pouliot for those pictures.
From the start, William Colmer
took some of our pictures. At
the First Annual Field Day in
1548, Mr. Krasnecki had taken
a number of pictures and it
wasn’t until later in the
evening that he found out that
his camera was out of focus.
Knowing that Mr. Pouliot had
also taken pictures that day,
WMr. Krasnecki purchased Mr.
Pouliot’s pictures. Mr. Pou-
liot inquired why people in
Chelmsford were not so friend-
ly? With this Mr. Krasnecki
asked Mr. Pouliot if he would
like to take pictures for him
so that he may become better

acqualintea with people 1n tne
town. What Mr. Pouliot has ac-
complished by taking pictures
and mixing with the people of
Chelmsford is proof that resi-
dents of this town want to be
friendly if given a chance.
It also proves that a handicap
such as being deaf is no bar-
rier in this town to get along
with fellow townsmen nor does
it interfere with skill poss-
essed in any person,

During 1949 the offset de-
partment of Baanner Press in
Townsend was offered for sale
to Mr. Krasnecki. After talk-
ing to Mr. S. George Kimball
and George A. Tyler, two vet-
erans,
formed. called Offset Printing
Inc. of Lowell. Judge Vvalen-
tine handled the legal trans-
action while Mr. Thomas J.
Campbell of the Middlesex
County National Bank was pre-
sent with the money as the
purchase was made on Dec. 1,
1949, Mr. Kimball handled the
photographic and technical
phases at Banner Press while
Mr. Tyler handled the press-
room. Mr. Kimball is now a
resident of Chelmsford resid-
ing on Bridge Street, while
Mr. Tyler resides in Lowell.
The offset equipment was moved
to 685 Lawrence Street, Lowell
two weeks after it was pur-

chased, & building owned by
Frank J. Garvey, also of
Chelmsford.

At this location in Lowell
six weekly newspapers are
printed each week as are twelve
bi-weeklies and monthlies.

With the added duties at the
printing plant, Paul Reilly
became Managing '‘Editor of the
Newsweekly until January of
1951 with Hazel Rose (now
Hazel Otterson) and Beverly
Cochrane (now Beverly Parker)
working in the office.

Mrs. Frances Hartley came to
work at the Newsweekly in Jan-
uary 1951 and her cheerful
voice can be heard any day at
the office now. Assisting Mrs.
Hartley was Mrs. Florence Con-
fort who has become an expert
on the Varityper.

George A. Gagan came to work
for the Newsweekly in December
of 1953 until June 1954.

On July 1, 1954, the News-
weekly moved its offices to
the new Boyd Building where
we are now located. In August
1954 Earl L. Murphy came on
as Managing Editor and Nancy
Greenwood as varityper. Later
Mrs. Bernice Lewis came to the
Newsweekly as a varityper.

Parker George was added to
the staff as a reporter this
year and Mrs. Frances Ricker
of West Chelmsforc was added
as a correspondent.

Robert Braga is our latest
addition to the circulation

a corporation wasW. Parker George, Jr., Sports

Edi tor, looking over one of
the pictures going into the
sports pages.

department, and Shirley Gould
as typist.

When the Tercentenary year
of 1955 came, it was felt that
the Newsweekly, being the only
newspaper published in the
town, should do something
special to commemorate this
300th birthday of the town.
We felt that the Newsweekly
was making history for the
town with every issue it pub-
lished. Other newspapers had
been publisiied in the town
but none had published as long
as the Newsweekly has,

For two years plans have
been in the making. 0l1d pie-
tures, historical news have
been compiled by Miss Eleanor
Parkhurst who has done an ex-
cellent job on writing his-

Shirley Gould, Typist,

is now
a Senior in Chelmsford High
school. She works part time

after school. Her work is to
prepare copy for the Vari-
typer.

Robtert Braga, Circulation
Manager, working on the ad-
dressograph and preparing the
papers for mailing. Bobby is a

part time worker, attends
Keith Academy and is a Senior.

tory which we feel she is
very qualified to do. Mrs.
Lydwin Bachelder, an authority
on clothing, has prepared very
interesting material onclothes
in Chelmsford’s history and
she covered the woman’s angle
of the tercentenary celebra-
tion. We are also indebted
to the many people of this
town who have offered unsel-
fishly their time and informa-
tion inmaking the Tercentenary
Edition so complete.

Walter Cole was engaged to
handle the advertising for the
Tercentenary Edition and has
worked on this edition from
March to August. Bertram Need-
ham also assisted Mr. Cole for
a period of time.

It is through the advertis-
ing in any publication such
as this that makes such a
publication successful. This
publication has meant a great
deal of work for the entire
staff and we sincerely hope
that we have satisfied you --
our readers.

Qur regular edition is pub-
lished every Thursday with
news of you and your town,
published by Chelmsford people
for Chelmsford people. May the
advertisers who helped us in
this edition prosper in the
years to come.
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1
‘THE BELLS OF OLD CHELMS- [
FORD. |
Deep, and then high —high and then qeep!
The bells of oid Chelmsford melody keep.
Beep, and thexhigh—high, aad then deepl,
1n tarn, sod in tune, they rejoice and they leap. |

High, and then deep!—deep, snd then high! |
As if they were angels, ot of the sky—

High, aad then decp!—deep, and then high! |
Now, far away off, and now, heavenly migh.

Deep, and then high!—high, sad then deep! ‘
The bells of old Chelmsford solemaly sweep.
Deep, and then high!—high, and then deep! ‘
The Kingdom scome to the Sabbath-day's aleep. |

High, and then deep!—deep xad then high!
Ad'tha 1o the hiearts of men they did ary,— -
High, sl Vyen deep |—doep, and then high!
“Hope awsy! ‘twill be beiter thanthiy, bye and |
byer® |
|
Deep, and thenbigh !t —high, and then deep! 1
The bells of ol @helmsford barmony keep.
Deep, and thell nigh ! high, and tben deep!
It's joy that they sow, and it's Joy that they reap. |

High, and they derp!—deep, and then high!

0, bells from two steeples, In one divine tie ] |
High, and then deep'—deep, snd then bigh! |
O] balls of old Chelmsford, Bever to die! |

/|

—\

T
President, True Mortom Clerk and
Treasurer, C. B. Stevers.

In conclpsion it shaull be stated
that this article is ten by one
who has no interest i§ #he company |
other than that whichegwery -citizen
ought to masifest in sy landable an |
undertaking. crvis. |

Our Fillage I ent As-
soei

Amesting of the $ifizens of this

Fplace called for the

- eblingiang tmensarcs blic intewest

dw.ih'huld in the sx.ﬂ:m Mon-
y evening, Noveurgghl Sth.
Organized by choiegof J. A. Bart-

lett as Chairman, snom$: S. Perham,

Mr. E. K. Parkhuraddressed the
meeting, and refel§il to some
measures, the adoptigmof which he |
thonght might serve § promote the
public interests. The #tablishment
of street lights was apaen of as one
needed improvement. e occasional

issue of a paper it wagssought might
serve to keep salive wm interest in
building which had bées manifested
during the past year.

Dr. J. C. Bartlett bj#se in favor
of forming an assocismon for the |
purpose of setting shade trees and |
otherwise improving :ews streets and |
puablic squares.

Committees were anointed to
further consider tHls and other
mensures which had 8 proposed
and report at an adj meeling.

Nov. 22d. Our citizens again met
agreeable to adjourmment, and the

committee on organizmign presented
the following pream d form of
constitution : :

Recognizing the fast it in every
community there exist afistain public
needa which may be better met or
provided for by orgafiggsd than in-
dividual effort, and fossHer that in
this particalar villags mrnl public

of econ-

Robin's Hill.
This hill is the ling point

C’Iwh:_a.:_tford (,‘rtrd;.

The reason why

'PERHAM'S  VINEGAR

| s galned such au euviable reputation in the

| PAST 35 YEARS

I8 not browuse they hitve learned some soeret 1o
Its mauufacture, but because they bever pot np
Uy vinegar from the

“OLD PERHAM FARM"

cxcept the

Lowell Ca rds |

of Chelmsford Centre. It is the land- =

mark of the country 'round for miles.

A single tree on the top stands so

accurately and gracefully just at the

right place that it seems as though it

was the hill itself rising naturally |
into & central spire, and it is weil |
known as “The Lone Pine.” Through |
this natural spire the branches are so
regolarly disposed as to represent
very well the roonds of a ladder, or,
perhaps, the steps of & circular stair-
way running up to still loftier pros- |
pects. At another point is a great|
rock, marvelously balanced, as if
fixed there by some power, something
in the same way that Columbus set
the egg on end. Here, with s little |
scramble, is another natural chance |
for another view from the hill, 1In-|
deed the lookout from amy part of|
the brow of the hill is fully worth the |
walk and struggle,up. To the north

and west lie the signal mountains of |
M: ta. There's Monadnock | |
and westerly is Wachusett. Yonder |
winds the great valley of the Merri-|
mack; and there is Lowell dotted|
out upon the scene. Here right at|
our feet is the pretty group of
Chelmsford Centre. Of a little ways

in Sonth Chelmsford, is a bit of lake,

for the landscape. South, put off to

sea, for the vision is unlimited over|
an undulatory expanse of hamleted |

BEST QUALITY

T == or
PUTNAM & SON |Pure Old Cider Vinegar.

Ask sttention to the following ‘

SPECIAL DARGAINS

H. 8. PERHAMN,
Chelwsfowd.
E. B. MELVIN,
From BRADT'S BAKERY, LOWELL,

To be found In thelr Clrculates Bnmab, Ciiackens, Tanrs, Pixs,

Buns, Caxes, &c., &c.,

Comprehensive Stock, wmoag the 004 peogle uf Chelmatod, Nocth

msford, also Towksbury and Dracuf

Which for the LOW PRICES quoted must g

| HOUSE LOTS

FOR SALE,

Twa large, very desicable lots, within thes
minutes’ walk of depot.  Seversl smaller Loty
within Bive minates’ walk of depot—very cheap,

commend them to every purchaser.

ONE LOT |

D. A. BUSSRLL.
Chelmaford, Dee. 14, 1875,

W Wum ﬂ m ) MIDDLESEX N

Mutual Fire Insurance Co.,
Lacorporated March 3, 150
Geo. Heywood, Pres.

Worth §$12.00. Concord, Mass,
pae——— = Riotird Rarrett, Seey.

This Compaay Insures first.cjass proparty be
Musnachuseits, agaiuat loss by Are of 1ghtoiny
| and is now paying s retu ¥

| R T e
CARDIBAN JACKETS, $1 EACH —
|

GREEN & HAGERMAN,

FIFTEEN DOZEN HEAVY

| BOSTON 0 improvements urgently nd atten- | . i Worth §1.50. .
r . T i - - t‘um tion, therefore, "“'} i"“*ﬂ'l"’fl E'“T"“}‘:‘” and L:"u"nC:)}?l‘ Carpenters  and  Builders,
4 .| every «member is supplied with a| Resolved, That we, cifizens of | BRGNS} tha: Sresats here'] e | R )
@ he Natural Scenery of Chelma- | The Co :peultl(v,:mllutml Home- | 1 ouse in which the comparry shall in- | Chelmsford Centre, ourselves heats of mid-summer! “What a Cheimaford.
ford. pany. vest the sum of one thousand dollars. | into n society under the name of the [ grand place,” you think, with a mind 100 DOZEN. & iaren o sk it b0 exbonts ang

| Wekeep
| kind of work in the above line In s expeditions
snd workmaalike manner.

Itissafe to say ihat wmature has| The most important real estate | 8o that by paying four dollsrs more |“Village Improvemefft Association,” | to the useful as well as the 1muginna
done more for our vilge than art. |movement in this village for many | per month than the average rent in|for the purpoges here L et forth, | tive—*What & grand place for a|

Board of Health Agent Edward Tyler and clerk Mrs. Flor-

ence Dutton.

Dr. Levi Howard, father of Dr.
Amasa Howard who succeeded him

in 1882
and violinist,

an able physician

Small Pox Epidemic

Continued from fourth page
person in 7 died. Shortly be-
fore this, several volumes of
medical treatises had been im-
ported from England, and Dr.
Wm. Douglass, the only physi-
cian then in Boston with an
M.D. degree, loaned them to
nis friend, the Rev. Cotton
Mather. In these transactions
of the Royal Society were two
articles descriving the methods
and successful results of the
treatment of small pox in Tur-
key and neignboring countries
by means of inoculating healthy
individuals with the disease
so that they might be immunized
by undergoing a light case of
it. Cotton Mather at once saw
the bearing of these articles
on the situation at hand, and
he invited the physicians of
Boston to meet with him to
discuss the possibilityof try-
ing out this new method. The

meeting was not held--perhaps

due to Dr. Douglass' opposi-
tion--and so Mr. Mather wrote
to his friend, Dr. Zabdiel

Boylston (for whom Boston's
Boylston Street is named) and
asked his opinion, saying that
among some foreign peoples
“*tis no rare thing for a
whole company of a dozen to-
egether to go to a person sick
of the small pox, and prick
his pustules, and inoculate the
numour, even no wmore than to
the back of an hand, and go
home and be a little ill, and
have a fever, and be safe all
the rest of tneir days.’' Dr.
3oylston immediately made a
most daring experiment: he
inoculated nis own small son
and two Negro servants. The
experiment was successful and
several others were inoculatea,
but none of the other Boston
physicians except one, would go
to see the living witnesses of
this success. Tne general
public grew hysterical: Mr.
Mather and Dr. Boylston were
insulted on the street and in
the press, their families were
hardly safe outside their
nones, and ‘many sober pious
people were struek with horror,
and were of opinion that 4f
any (of Dr. Boylston' §)patients
siould die, he ought to be
treated as a murderer.’

Tne civil authorities of
Boston net to hear evidence on
the matter of inoculation and
were persuaded that ‘the con-
tinuing of the Operation among
us is likely to prove of most
dangerous consequence.’ Dr,
Boylston persisted, however,
and soon a great increase in
the number of inoculations be-
gan. Cotton Mather’s son was
inoculated secretly after his
father had given much tnought
and prayer to the decision.
The ministers now encouraged
the practice, and many who
underwent the great ordeal of
inoculation found it no ordeal
at all but were ‘drowned in
tears to think how the lives

Swift and Compary red wazo

of their Quninoculated rela-
tives) have been thrown away.'’
The public was still uncon-
vinced; a lighted grenade was
thrown througih Cotton Mather's
window but fortunately did not

explode. By the end of the
year, when tne epidemic began
to wane, inoculation was on

the way to quite general ac-
ceptance although many details
and improvements remained to
be worked out over a long
period of time.

In Chelmsford, which had al-
ready had occasional cases of
small pox, thedisease appeared
in John dates' family (1722)
and the selectmen ordered that
the road be fenced up on each
side of his house with notices
posted so that travellers
could avoid the place. The town
paid for this, for tne services
of a constable who forbade the
family to leave their house,
and for nursing care.

In 1760, Zebediah Keyes, jr.,
apprenticed to a Billerica
man, came home to visit his
mother ‘in ye Neck' (East
Chelmsford). Snhe had been
widowed late in 1758, when her
husband died within a week of
his return from the French and
Indian war. The son was taken
ill of small pox and died. He

was buried ‘nigh unto nis
mother’s house’ for ‘it was
Jjudged best not to bring the
corps to town to ue buried.’
Others in the family hastily
left wnen he became sick, but
his mother cared for him anc
shortly fell ill herself. After
fier recovery, the churcn took
up a collection of £62 in cash
and &4 in grain for her and
her family as was often done
in needy cases.

During the Revolutionary
period there was much small
pox, encouraged by the dis-
turbed conditions of the day
and spread by refugees and re-
turning soldiers.. The story of
tne deaths of Dr. Jonas Mar-
shall’s wife and two of her
children from this source in
1776 is well known. The town
records have many entries on
behalf of the Lufkin family who
contracted small pox twice in
1777 and 1778. The children
were boarded out, services of
a nurse and doctor were pro-
vided, and much unspecified
help given--all at town ex-
pense. The only ‘medicine’
listed is ten pounds of sugar,
a gallon of rum, and 24 quarts
of spirits.

Although inoculation was now

Continued on eleventh page



Selectmen 1917-1955

1917: Justin L. Moore, A.
Heady Park, D. Frank Small;
1918: D. Frank Small, Justin
L. Moore, A. Heady Park; 1919:
Wm. E. Belleville, D. Frank
Small, Justin L. Moore; 1920:
Geo. W.Day, Wm. E. Belleville,
James P. Dunigan; 1921: Geo.
Rigby, Geo. W. Day, Wm. E.
Belleville; 1922: Wm. E.Belle-
ville, Geo. Rigby, Geo. W.
Day; 1923: Geo. W. Day, Wm. E.
Belleville, Geo. Righy; 1924:
Geo. Rigby, Geo. W. Day, Wm.
E. Belleville; 1925: Geo. W.
Day, Geo. Rigby, Robt. W. Bar-
ris; 1926: Geo. Rigby, Robt.
W. Barris, Ralph P. Adams;
1927, Robt. W. Barris, Ralph
P. Adams, Geo. Rigby; 1928:
Ralph P. Adams, Geo. Rigby,
Eliphalet G. Brown; 1929: Geo.
Rigby, Eliphalet G. Brown,
Frank J. Lupien; 1930: Elipha-
let G. Brown, Frank J. Lupien,
Royal Shawcross; 1931: Prank
J. Lupien, Royal Shawcross,
James A. Grant; 1932: James A.
Grant, Royal Shawcross, Frank
J. Lupien; 1933: Herbert C.
Sweetser, Frank J. Lupien,
Stewart MacKay; 1934: Frank J.
Lupien, Stewart MacKay, James
A.Grant; 1935: Stewart MacKay,
James A. Grant, Karl M. Per-
ham; 1936: James A. Grant,
Karl M.Perham, Stewart MacKay;
1937: Karl M. Perham, Stewart
MacKay, James A. Grant; 1938:
Stewart MacKay, James A.Grant,
Karl M. Perham; 1939: James A.
Grant, Karl M. Perham, Stewart
MacKay; 1940: Karl M. Perham,
Stewart MacKay, James A.Grant;
1941: Stewart MacKay, James A.
Grant, Karl M. Perham; 1942:
James A. Grant, Karl M. Per-
ham, Stewart MacKay; 1943:
Karl M.Perham, Stewart MacKay,
Raymond H. Greenwood; 1944:
Stewart MacKay, Raymond H.
Greenwood, Karl M. Perham;
1945; Raymond H. Greenwood,
Karl M. Perham, John L. Duss-
eault; 1946: Karl M. Perham,
John L. Dusseault, Raymond H.
Greenwood; 1947: John L. Duss-
eault, Raymond H. Greenwood,
Theodore W. Emerson; 1948:
Raymond H. Greenwood, Theodore
W. Emerson, Carl A.E. Peter-
son; 1949; Theodore W.Emerson,
Carl A.E. Peterson, Arnaud R.
Blackadar; 1950: Carl A.E.
Peterson, Arnaud R. Blackadar,
Theodore W. Emerson; 1951:
Arnaud R. Blackadar, Theodore
W. Emerson, Carl A.E. Peter-
son; 1952: Theodore W. Emer-
son, Carl A.E. Peterson, Ray-
mond H. Greenwood; 1953;: Carl
A.E. Peterson, Raymond H.
Greenwood, Roger W. Boyd;
1954: Raymond H. Greenwood,
Roger W.Boyd, Donald E. Smith;
1955: Roger W. Boyd, Donald E.
Smith, Daniel J. Hart.

Small Pox Epidemic

Continued from tenth page

veing urged in Boston as a
duty of leading citizens,
magistrates and ministers who
offered themselves and their
families as examples to the
wavering public, it was not
universally required by law
for many years to come, and the
dangers of small pox caused
much general inconvenience in
addition to the high mortality
rate. Harvard College was
closed at times because of the
infection, the ferryvoat be-
tween Cnarlestown and Boston
suffered great losses from the
decrease in passenger traffic,
and several Harvard Commence-
ments were onitted to check the
spread of the disease. The
General Court often held its
meetings in Cambridge or Con-
cord in plague years and in
1764 ‘The General Court being
driven from Boston by reason

of ye Small Pox sat in ye
flarvardJcollege and ye keeping
a fire in ye library, beyond
what was usual, occasion’d ye
burning said building, with the
Great and Valuaoble library,
etc., etc.’

During the troubled years
when inoculation and then vac-
cination were coming into
general acceptance and when
fumigation and isolation were
familiar practices in the
patient’s own house or in the
town’'s pesthouse and ‘smoak-
louse’, there was a great deal
of anxious thought and debate
over what was at first called
‘self-suicide’ and eventually
hecame recognized as an essen-
tial nealth measure. Here
seemed literally a matter of
life and death, and parents
asked themselves what tneir
duty was toward their cnildren
much as they ask it today.
Cotton Mather's concern for
his children’s welfare is
matched by Mr. Bridge in ais
diary, and must have peen
echoed by many others: “Tnis
affair of ye small nox and wiat
I meet with about my two sons’
desire to pe inoculated, is
one of ye most troublesome af-
fairs of my whole life. I wish
we may be directed for ye best.’

Parental responsibility was
not sufficient in all cases to
secure protection against the
small pox, and the power of the
state was at length called in
to make vaccination compulsory,
but we cannot overestimate the
debt owed to such men as Cotton
Mather, Dr. Boylston and the
other leadersof their day wlo,
weighing their parental and
civic duties, decided that the
new method of inoculation was
entirely consistent ‘with a
humble trust in our Great Pre-
server, and a due Subjection
to his All-wise Providence.’

Home Cures

The following recipes are
taken from a book, written in
1760. These should interest
the reader, and perhaps recon--
cile him to living in the pre-
sent rather than in the good
old days.

For Canker: Bull paddocks or-
frogs with fresh butter: simmer’
them close covered, to a crips,
then strain for use.

To Cure the Hearing: Take a

ﬁe silver eeale, remove in-
1s and pound as much on-

1ons as will fill his belly
full and sew fast together and
tye a line to his tail and
hang it down to a moderate

fire and keep it turning till
the oyl is well rosted out,
then put into a vial well
stoped. Drop 2 or 3 drops in
the ear and mind to keep the
ear well stoped with black
wool and repeet once in a day
for some time and be very
carful of cold

For lame and num limbs: Oyl
wherein Frogs have been boyld
till their flesh is com off
their bones.

For old Joint Desese: Make
a bath with Emmets, and their
eggs - will quickly cure them.

A Drink for wounded men:
take crabs from the river, beat
to a fine powder with various
roots, boyl in a linen cloth
in three pints of Ale, and the
herb of the Perwinkels. This
is one of the best drinks to
be had.

In the Chelmsford Courier in
1825 was advertised: Bateman's
Ointment' a safe and certain
cure for the itch.

The itch seems to have been
prevalent in 1778. From a
Doctor' Betty sprescription
to a patient was: ‘enough
ointment to cure ten pursons
of the itch.’

Doctor Betteys often re-
ceived his pay in other things
than money, labor, spinning,

one day’'s reaping, four chair
bottoms, thirteen bushels of
corn, knitting, and one broom.

Food

There was always plenty of
fish, sometimes bear-meat, ven-
ison, or other wild-game or
fowl. The common domestic ani-
mals werg bred from stock sent
from Englund in the earliest
days of the Colonies. Auong the
proper families, turnips often
took the place of potatoes, and
for coffee they had a drink
made of barley, rye, or brown
bread crusts. Coffee came into
use among those who could af-
ford it, not long before the
year 1800.1t was first used in
England about 1690, Home brewed
beer was a common drink, and
when orchards were grown, cider
was used in great quantities.
Wine and spirituous liquors
were imported and used freely
on all occasions.

Breac was generally made by
mixing two partsof Indian meal
with one part of rye flour.
‘Rye and Indian’ was the staple
for two hundred years. Morning
andevening, the people partook
of hasty pudding, boiledIndian
meal, with milk or molasses,
or porridge made of beans or
peas, and salt pork or beef.

Congratulations
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Buy This Im
Frigidaire Wu.l..,- for

You get it ONLY on the

Avtomatic Washer
Famous Live-Water washing keeps clothes
moving under water all the time . . , not
half-in, half-out. Gets out the deep down dirt
other washers leave behind. Float-over rins-
ing and Rapidry Spin get clothes brighter,
pounds lighter than any other make.

Porcelain Pair

Filtra-matic Dryer
Needs no vents, flues or plumbing. Install it
anywhere. Clothes come out soft, wrinkle-
free, sweet-smelling. Automatic time and
temperature controls let you dry clothes the
way you want. Fits flush against the wall,
Drum is porcelain finished, no snagging.

to the TOWN OF CHELMSFORD

Tally these Frigidaire SPECIALS
against any other deal in town!

-
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Arthur Godfrey Special

New Quick-Cubelet Tray

Makes new tiny ice cubes to fit small-
est juice glasses. Cools liquids faster.
Golden aluminum finish . . . built-in
tray and cube releases.

&

="GL 3-1046

$29

$325 yalue

7 CENTRAL J4Q. CHELMSFORD

Brand-New 1955 Model CDV-103-SPCL

COMPARE COMPARE
what you get! what you pay!

l||. separate foed Our special price
M.‘.{nﬂlq in the re- 95
frigerator compariment. s369

Ne pans te emply

Storage Door with 4 Less irade-in wp te

shelves, space for tall
boftles, eggs
All-porcelain Hydraters
All aluminum shelves

One half-shelf, remev-
able

Exclvsive Quickvbe Trays
Meter-Miser Mechanism
with 5-Year Warranty

Brand-New 1955 Medel RV-26-5PCL

$|00.00

COMPARE COMPARE
what you get! what you pay!

New Heat-Minder Unit
New Speed-Heat Unit
Al Porcelain Finish
Full-width Cooking-Top
Lamp

Our special price

5299.95

Less trade -in wp te

550.00

Cook-Master Oven Cleck
Contreol

Multi-Duty Thermizer
2 Large Storage Dreawers

Brand-New 1955 Frigidaire
All-Porcelain Pair

Only

OPEN EVENINGS UNTIL 8am




TOWN OF CHELMSFORD

TOWN OF CHELMSFORD
Soride 30 Rewla (0 the jrch.

SOUTH PART OF

CHELMSFORD

TOWN OF CHELNSFORD

v
TOWN OF CHELMSFORD
Scale. 20 Rods fothe inch

villages in the Town have grown in proportion.
i has been built on the vacant lot between the railroad and the house
j of Miss M. E. Richardson; All Saints’ Church stands where the
{ words “‘Episc. Soc.” are on the map; the Congregational Church

is on the land marked “G. P. Winn and Sisters;” the Central
Block, below the house of Mrs. E. W. Fiske; and the large fireproef
building of the Chelmsford Spring Company, above the mill pond
on the lot marked ‘D, Perham.” |
southern part of the lot marked “Res. of J. A. Bartlett."

From 1895 to 1915 a hundred houses or more have been erected in the
Centre Village shown in part on the left of this map.

The other
The Town Hall

The Adame Library occupies the
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First Town Meeting

Continued from second page

of the original buildings
still remain in the possession
of the family. The road, one
of the oldest in town, orig-
inally ran from the meeting
house by Westford Road, Worthen
Street, and Crosby Place, and
continued to Golden Cove road
near the house of Jas. F.
Stearns. The part beyond the
Crosby place has been long
di scontinued.

Second Town Meeting:

The second Town Meeting
fixed the date of the annual
meeting and the officers to be
chosen and also fixed a penal-
ty for such as might be in-
clined to neglect their poli-

: 00 ST .{
PN “'QL:“E)S,‘."'
55 &r‘b /
o el &

FROM BEERS'S ATLAS, 1875.

tical duties. .

At a Publick meeting of the
Town fist Day 24th, 1655. Wil-
lian Fletcher is Chosen Con-
stable; Isaac Lerned is Chosen
Sergeant of the band: Simon
Tomson is Chosen Clerk of the
Band:

It is ordered that the first

second day of the first month
shall be ovbserved by all the
nouseholders of the town from
year to year for the Chusing
of all annual officers belong-
ing to the Town as the select-
men or committee: Deputy for
the Oourt: Constable: The three
men to end all small causes

under forty shillings Survey-
ors for the high-way overseers
of the fences and swine and to
meet at the meeting-hous by
nine a Clock in the morning
and for the first hours non-
appearance twelve pence and
for a whole Days Absence, two
shillings.




Harold C. Petterson, Town Clerk, Treasurer and Tax Col-
lector with Mrs. Charlotte DeWolf, clerk.

Government

Continued from first page
individual should act as his
own interpreter, however; he
was expected to accept the in-
terpretation of the ministers,
whose influence and position
consequently became very great.
When the Bible was translated
into English and became avail-
able to all,and when the prin-
ciple became established that
each man was capable of read-
ing and understanding God’'s
word, a torrent of popular
enthusiasm had been created
and in Massachusetts Bay par-
ticularly, the clergy fought
a gradually-losing battle to
maintain their positions of
authority.

The urge to spread out and

seek richer lands and better
settlements could not always
be controlled by the officials,
either, and little groups of
men went out beyond the limits
first set to establish towns
and, through local town meet-
ings, to run their own af-
fairs, After 1647, there were
no religious qualifications
for the franchise in these
meetings although at first
every voter had to be a church
member. This requirement was
neither practical nor popular
and was abandoned early in
local affairs but lingered
considerably longer at the
colony level.

Chelmsford was for its first
year guided by a group of
trustees, but as soon as the
town organization could be

established, selectmen were
‘selected’ by vote. Other town
officials came into being as
the need arose. Hog reeves and
fence viewers were needed, for
example, to protect property.

The first man to represent
Chelmsford at the General
Court, according to the re-
cords, was Ensign John Webb,
in 1663. He was followed by
Thomas Hinchman and the office
continued to be held by some
of the most respected men of
the town,

Seating The
Meeting House

The Meeting Hduse was the
social center. The minister
was the important man, looked
up to with great respect.
His presence was called for
at all important publiec, or
family occasions.

Attendance upon public wor-
ship was compulsory. All were
taxed to support the church,
and, when a minister was to be
settled, he was voted upon in
town meeting, the church having
previously made known its
preference,

The seats in the meeting
house were assigned by a com-
mittee chosen by the town,
persons being given preference
according to their estate,
office, or social standing.

It is not probable that the
first meeting house contained
pews, thepeople being seated
on benches. It was repaired
in 1702, ‘both tout side to
keep out rain and snow, and
also withinside such Inlarge-
ment as may be needful and in
perticular A long table form
one allee to another’ At a
later period persons were per-
mitted to build pews at their
own expense for themselves and
families. In 1712 - ‘It was

s o P

Town Accountant Alfred Coburn at his office in the Town

Hall.

voted that Colonall tying Capt.
Bowers, Capt. Barron, and
Jonathan Richardson shall haue
the liberty and benefit of
making Pues in that vacant
roome one the East side of the
Pulpit in the New meeting hous
to the East Window.’ At a still
later period the town received
pay for such privilege. In
1772, ‘Voted to sell room, for
pew, in meeting house by the
mens stairs, sold to Samuel
Perham for ten dollars.’

Votes on record indicate
that such pew-holders were
sometimes permitted to have a
door cut through the side of
the building, giving them a
private entrance to their pews.

Before the introduction of
bells it was the custom to
summon the worshippers to
meeting with a drum. Among the
town charges in 1659 one was

‘for the paiment for a Drum
to Henry Farwell.’ It appears
also that a flag was sometimes
flung to the breeze for the
same purpose.

From 1680 to the present
time the sound of the church
bell has called the people
to worship. On the above date
‘Ther was a voatt past that
ther shold bee so much land
sould out of the comon as will
purchase the bell and hange
him in the meeting hous that
is to say if the towns stock
in hand will not doe it then
to sell land.’

The date 1682 was inscribed
upon the bell. Wwhen the third
meeting house was built the
town voted, in 1793, ‘to sell
the old bell and buy a new one
of 700 wt. The old bell went
to Tyngsboro, where it was
used on a schoolhouse.’

FACTORY FURNITURE DI
AT TREMENDOUS SAVINGS

SAVE
FROM

60%
TO

80%

"YOU CAN ALWAYS MAKE A DEAL WITH TUNNEY"

W arehouse Furniture Store

205 Main Street

Route 38

RECT TO YOU

EASY
BUDGET
TERMS

W ilmington




Firemen's Muster

Continued from seventh page
Class 2 with a record of 196
feet and three inches. Taking
third place money in Class 2
was Niagara of Upton, Mass.,
with their effort carrying 184
feet and ten and ahalf inches.
Hydrant No. 3 of Holliston,
Mass.,was the fourth place
winner scoring with their 179
feet and eleven and a half
inches. The fifth and final
prize winner in Class 2 was
Androscoggin No. 2 Topsham.
Maine, with a 171 feet and six
inch attempt.

The Marblehead OKO's took
the first place money in Class
1 as they managed to put up
the days best effort with a
stream carrying 197 feet and
five inches. Second place was
hotly contested with L. V.
Spaulding of Haverhill, Mass.,
finally winning with their 188
feet and one and a half inch-
es. The Gov. Bradstreet of
North Andover, Mass.,came in a
close third with a stream of
187 feet and nine and three
quarter inches. The real bat-

TUB NAME
CLASS 1
OKO' S
Marble head, Mass.
L. V. SPAULDING
Haverhill, Mass.
GOV. BRADSTREET
No. Andover, Mass.
NEPTUNE
Newburyport, Mass.
PROTECTION NO. 1
Newbury, Mass.

CLASS 2

GERRY NO. 5
Marblehead, Mass.
TORRENT NO. 1
Bath, Maine
NIAGARA

Upton, Mass.
HYDRANT NO. 3
Holl iston, Mass.
Androscoggin No. 2
Topsham, Maine
EAGLE NO. 2
Merrimac, Mass.
HANCOCK NO. 128
Ashburnham, Mass.

tle for places came on the
battle for fourth place money.
A margin of a quarter of an
inch decided the winner. The
Neptune of Newburyport, Mass.,
put up a stream of 177 feet
and eight and a half inches
while Protection No. 1 of
Newbury, Mass.,had a best ef-
fort of 177 feet and eight
and a quarter inches, which
gave them fifth place money.

The water polo matches saw
the Dracut department take
first place with Ayer winning
second honors. This game was
played with a large can hung
on a wire between two poles
and the winning team had to
send the can to the opponents
pole by using the force of
water from two hoses while
the opposing team used their
two hoses in an attempt to
move the can to the other
pole. In all there were seven
departments in action in this
event with the other units
being Dunstable, Billerica,
Westford, Danvers and Methuen.

Following is a complete list
of the hand tubs and their re-
cords:

FEET INCHES
197 52
188 1%
187 9%
177 8%
177 8%
196 11%
196 3

184 10%
179 11%
171 6

161 11%
146 34

South Chelmsford V.I.A.

This year, when the Town of
Chelmsford celebrates its
300th birthday, is also the
75th active year for the South
Chelmsford Village Improvement
Association. The oldest active
civic organization in Chelms-
ford, the history of its first
sixty years is contained in a
tattered, yellow secretary’'s
notebook. Beginning with the
by-laws, adopted in April
1881 and ending with the record
of the annual meeting in April,
1941, there is contained in
this one book an account of
the annual and special meet-
ings of the organization for
every year from 1881 to 1941
with the exception of 1891,
when ‘the records of the meet-
ing were reported lost.’

The first pages contain the
Constitution and By-Laws,
written in a beautiful scroll,
and the Preamble composed so
long ago still expresses the
aims of the organization:
‘Whereas the people of South
Chelmsford, being an enter-
prising, ambitious people and
desirous of making a mark in
life, whereby they may be re-
membered by the rising genera-
tion, they deem it highly
proper that they take upon
themselves the project of im-
proving, beautifying and orna-
menting their village and
suburbs.’

The Constitution made pro-
vision for President, Vice
President, Secretary and
Treasurer and a Vigilance Com-
mittee, whose duty ‘it shall
be to look after all improved
works, also to investigate and
prosecute, if necessary, any
person or persons found guilty
of damaging any work carried
on by the society.’

Article V provided for mem-
bership in this manner: ‘Any
person becoming a member of
this society shall be requested
to sign the Constitution and
By-Laws and to pay the sum of
twenty cents into the treasury.’
However, over the years times
have changed and the cost of
living has gone up. Life mem-
bership now costs twenty-five
cents.

Although Liberty Hall was in
existence at the time, the an-
nual meetings until 1900 were
held at homes of various mem-
bers and it was at the second
meeting held on April 23, 1881
at Mr. N.B. Lapham’s that the

Continued on sixteenth page

South Chelmsford Fire Station, used originally as a

School for the South section.

g

North Chelmsford Fire Station. A new fire statjon was vo-
ted at Annual Town Meeting for the North section tobe lo-
cated at the site of the old Princeton Street schools.

CHELMSFORD CENTER FIRE STATION AT NORTH ROAD.

e St
e i

Robins Hill Tower used as a
fire lookout for miles around.

West Chelmsford Fire Station.

Congratu]ations Chelmsford
WHALEN & COMPANY

Industrial Woodworkers
22 MAPLE ROAD SOUTH CHELMSFORD, MASS.




Police Officer
Shet By Madman
On July 19, 1927, Donald F.

Adams, who had served the
town as constable and police
officer for nearly five years,
died in a Lowell hospital
shortly after being shot dur-
ing the performance of his
duties by a deranged Lowell
man who had come to Chelmsford
in an attempt to extort money
from A G. Pollard, founder and
owner of the Lowell dry goods
store bearing his name. Mr.
Pollard, who had previously
received two threatening let-
ters at his home on Bartlett
street, was sitting on his
porch when a stranger -- ap-
parently the author of these
letters-- approabhed and de-
manded payment of $25,000. Mr.

Pollard called a servant and
the man fled through the grove
to Boston road where the elec-
tric car line then ended. The
police were immediately noti-
fied and a motorcycle officer,

Mr. Adams, responded but found
that the man had boarded the
Street car for Lowell. He fol-
lowed the car, which 2lways
stopped at the railroad cross-

ing in Chelmsford street, and
there stood beside it and
asked the man to come out to

talk with him. He refused and
Officer Adams boarded the car.

The man shot him as he walked

down the aisle toward him, and

death followed within a half

hour. The man was committed to

the Bridgewawer Hospital for
the Insane for life, but it is

believed, has since beenre
leased.

Murder Of Mrs.
Wilfred Blondin

On June 9, 1901, the decap-

itated body of Mrs. Margaret
Blondin was found hidden in a
brush heap in Chelmsford, just
off Mill Road, near Russell’s
Mill, by Robert Hildreth,
superintendent of the Town
Farm, who was searching for a
lost cow. About a week later,
on June 15, detectives found
an axe with which the murder
was supposed to have been com-
mitted. It was discovered a
short distance from the mill
brook in which Mrs. Blondin’s
head was found earlier, and
nearby was also found a white
silk tie presumable worn by
the victim at the time of the
murder. The finding of these
articles tended at first to
indicate that the murder was
committed near where the body
was found, but later it became
known that the victim had been
killed in Boston by her hus-
band,, J. Wilfred Blondin, in
a fit of temper over money
matters,

Blondin then stuffed her body
into an enormous trunk and
went with it by train to North
Blillerica. There he supervised
the removal of the trunk,
cautioning the station hands
to be unusually careful of its
contents. Borrowing a driving
horse and democrat wagon from
a former Chelmsford employer,
Blondin then took the trunk
and its gruesome contents to
the Russell’ s Mill neighbor-
hood to be hidden. The trunk
itself was not found until
long after the case was closed.
Its water-soaked and rotted
remains were located during a
period of prolonged drought
in the most obvious place for
such an object--at the bottom
of the mill pond.

Mr. Blondin, convicted of
second degree murder a:d sen-
tenced to life imprisonment
in the State Prison at charles-
town, died there of pneumonia
in 1910, but recollections of

the case that shocked staid
Chelmsford residents to the
core still linger today. Mr.
Blondin, or Fred, as he was
known locally, came from his
native Canada shortly before
the turn of the century, seek-
ing employment. He was, later
investigation revealed, free
on bail after having been
convicted of smuggling kerosene
0il across the Canadian border
to avoid payment of duty. A
Chelmsford resident, needing
help in rebuilding his hen-
houses and barn which were
burned by a gang of hen thieves
then active around the country-
side, hired Fred through a
Lowell employment agency at
$1. a day. Periodically, when
he had earned $100., Blondin
would ask for his wages, go
to Lowell, and return shortly
without the money. He refused
to discuss what he had done
with it, but it is clear now
that he was sending it back to
Canada to pay off his $500
fine for the smuggling episode.
Divorced from his wife in
Canada, Blondin met the murder
victim at the South Common
Midway in Lowell on July
Fourth. He later married her
and they moved to Boston after
living in Lowell for a time.
There the argument and its
fatal outcome occurred.

Mr. Blondin, described in
newspapers of the day as ‘un-
der medium height, very broad
of chest and bowlegged, with
dark moustache and hair’', was
regarded in town as a good
worker and very handy with
tools. He was also known lo-
cally as the bowlegged French-
man’ and this nickname drove
him into insane fits of blind
rage. He had a ‘gunpowder
temper,’ it is said, and when
his wife failed to give him
some of her money which he de-
manded, the temper flared and
the murder took place. Although
Mrs. Blondin understandably
appeared frightened of her ex-
plosive husband. thev were
also apparently genuinely fond
of each other and Fred pro-
bably had no intention of
killing her. It was this be-
lief, brought out during the
trial, which resulted in his
conviction for second and not
first degree murder.

Before he attained notoriety
as a murderer, Fred was well-
known for the incredible de-

monstrations of strength he
performed with the help of the
broad shoulders noted in the
police description of him.
A trial witness testified that
he had once seen Blondin move
a dump cart loaded with gravel
by stooping under its front
axle and raising it on his
shoulders, while another wit-
ness told of a similarly un-
believable feat involving an
even heavier load.

The Blondin case provided
a harvest of headlines for
thrill-seekers here and
throughout the Boston area,
but the under-statement of the
year was probably provided by
the Boston newspaper which
stated, just prior to the
final unravelling of the sor-
did case, that ‘Blondin sud-
denly threw up his job in Bos-
ton and disappeared as soon as
the body was identified. The
authorities think that he
could throw some light on the
subject.’

Police Band

Continued from fifth page
Day, George Marinel, Ray Morin,
Samuel Mortnam, Roger Proulx,
Walter Wilkins, Jr., and drum
carrier John McEnaney.

The next appearance that
this organization will make
will be in the parade during
the coming Tercentenary cele-
bration and they will bear
watching as they make their
debut on the local scene.

A Dreadful Accident

To the 1ist of casualties
which invariably burden the

columns of the newspapers
throughout the land the day
following the celebration of
the national anniversary [July
4], Chelmsford is now asorrow-
ful contributor. Never in the
history of the town, so far as
is known, has occurred so tra-
gic an event as that which
early on the morning of the
Fourth cast a feeling of gloom
over this community. About half
past 12 o’clock, three young
men, Walter S. Simons, jr.--
son of the well known manager
of the Central House--Fred San-
ton and Hanson Thurston, hav-
ing received permission to
fire a salute with an old
cannon which for many years
has been stored at various

places in the village, pro-
ceeded to the common for that
purpose and discharged the
plece twice without accident.
While Simons and Santom were
ramming home the third car-
tridge, Thurston, who had his
thumb upon the vent, probably
involuntarily withdrew his
hand on account of a sharp
burning sensation and an ex-
plosion immediately followed.
Young Simons was struck by the
rammer of the left side of the
lower jaw, which was badly
shattered and the muscles and
blood vessels on the same side
of the neck were completely
severed. The force of the ex-
plosion threw him some ten
feet from the cannon and death
was instantaneous. Pieces of
the rammer were afterwards
found many rods from the accisr
dent. * * Deceased was 22
years old, a young man of ac-
tive habits, kind-hearted and
of warm and generous impulses,
In this sudden and grievous
affliction his parents will
have the deepest sympathy of
the community.

Fred Santom, the other vie-
tim of the explosion was ter-
ribly mutilated but probably
will live. With assistance he
was able to walk to the house
of Dr. Howard, who dressed his
wounds and then accompanied

him to the Lowell city hospi-
tal, where amputation of the
right arm, about 4 inches below
the elbow was performed by Dr.
Johnson, assisted by Drs.
Simpson and Howard. He al so
lost the thumb and forefinger
of the left hand and his face
and eyes were severly burned,
imperilling the sight of the
right eye. Young Santom, who
is 18 years of age, is indeed
in a most unfortunate condi-
tion. He is sn orphan, without
means, making his home with
his aged grandmother, herself
in humble circumstances.

This sad event carries its
own lesson. Will it be heeded?

Jan., 1891. Fred A. santom,
the young man who lost an arm
July 4, 1889, by the premature
discharge of a cannon, was
provided with an excellent
substitute Friday through the
contributions of the people of
the village, which were solic-
ited by Mrs. N.A. Glidden. The
expense of the arm was $60.
and it was obtained in New
York through the kind offices
of Dr. E H. Chamberlin of this
town. A knife, fork, hook,
etc., are part of the outfit,
and after a little practice
the owner will probably real-
ize how closely in some lines
art can imitate nature’ s hand-

iwork.

Best Wishes To
The People of Chelmsford

LT. GOVERNOR
SUMNER G. WHITTIER

pRintING iNguURANCE

PICKEN
PRINTING and INSURANCE

35 Mears
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CHELMSFORD
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South Chelmsfora V.I.A.

Continued from fourteenth page
constitution and by-laws were
accepted. It was there that
the first slate of officers
was elected: President-M. Hut-
chins; Vice President-D.W.
Bickford; Secretary-Warren
Berry; Treasurer-Mrs. Mary
Lapham and Vigilance Committee
-L.J.Mansfield, Artemas Parker
and Frank Byam. It would seem
that the first nominating com-
mittee chose wisely, because
the first officers became the
backbone of the organization.
Mrs. Mary Lapham served twenty-
one consecutive years as
Treasurer and Warren Berry
held one of the principal of-
fices nearly every year for
twenty-nine years.

It was the custom of the or-
ganization from the very be-
ginning to set a ‘work day’
each year in the spring, when
trees were planted and such
improvements as were possible
were made in the town.

In 1882 it was voted ‘to
meet on Thursday, April 20 to
set out trees, build sidewalks
and make what improvements we
can,’ At the same meeting it
was voted ‘To authorize -the
President to purchase fifty-
nine (59) trees at a cost of
$22.05."

In 1885 it was voted ‘that a
Committee of three be appointed
to confer with the Town Center
in regard to improving Robbins
Hill." In 1886, Messrs. Lapham
and -Berry were appointed a com-
mittee to see about some street
lights. In 1890, ‘The Com-
mittee on Labor were author-
ized to get two street lamps’;
in 1895 it was voted to buy
ten new lamps and also a new
flag’ and in 1897 ‘it was
voted that the Executive Com-
mittee see the town officials

about painting the street
lamps and if they would not,
to get them painted, drawing
such money as might be re-
quired from the Treasury.'’

After several years of meet-
ing in the spring to work,
they decided to mix business
with pleasure and in 1883 was
started the annual custom of
having a dinner on work day
and this custom was carried
out for thirty years. Perhaps
there wasn’t too much to eat
at the first few suppers, be-
cause in 1886 it was voted ‘to
have a good square dinner.’
Then things seemed to get bet-
ter and in 1892 it was ‘Voted
to have a dinner at Liberty
Hall on working day (and a
supper, if there is enough
left.)’

Although socials were held
from time to time each year,
the main purpose of the organi-
zation continued to be the
improvement and beautification
of the village, together with
the protection and continuance
of improvements already begun.

In 1900 it was voted to have
the common graded and seeded
down some time the coming Fall
and a sum of money not to ex-
ceed thirty dollars was appro-
priated for the purpose. In
1913 a committee was chosen to
see that the electric lights
were kept in better condition
on Acton St. In 1918, it was
voted that $10 and the use of
the hall be contributed by the
V.I1.A. towards the entertain-
ment of some of the soldiers
from Camp Devens. In 1923 the
association voted to give the
fire department $25 for the
fire whistle. There was a
special meeting on April 7,
1926 - ‘This meeting was called
to consider the removal of
trees which were posted to be
cut down on Acton Road. After

much discussion about the care
and protection and expense
these trees had received from
the older residents of the
village, it was voted that
the V.I.A. file a protest
against any tree being removed
on Acton Street, South Chelms-
ford.' )

Besides being a record of
the civic accomplishments of
the people of South Chelms-
ford, the old notebook also
gives a glimpse of life as it
was lived at the turn of the
century in a small N.E. town.
The minutes of the meeting in
1909 close with the following
sentence: ‘The fire alarm com-
menced to ring and the meeting
closed without ceremony.’ One
has a picture of the fire
whistle interrupting a spir-
ited discussion and the hall
emptying rapidly as the volun-
teer firemen raced toward the
firehouse, while the women
gathered anxiously in front of
the hall to speculate on the
location of the fire.

In 1900 the following reso-
lution was made & permanent
part of the records of the
association:

“Whereas death has removed
the past year two of the mem-
bers of our Association we do
hereby

Resolve. That in the death
of Nathan B. Lapham and Newell
E. Parker, the Association has
lost two faithful and efficient
members who cheerfully contri-
buted to its support and
labored in all ways to advance
its interests. And that we
recognized in them those quali-
ties which made them good and
loyal citizens, kind and ob-
liging neighbors, faithful and
true friends.

‘Resolve. While we acknow-
ledge the hand from whom these

events come, we SOrrow because
they shall meet with us no
more. And will ever cherrish
(sic) precious memories of
them.

Resolve. That these resolu-
tions be copied in the records
of the society. And copies be
sent to the bereaved families
who have our love and sympathy.’

Perhaps in these days of
hustle and hurry we envy those
who lived at a time when an
organization could take the
time and several of its mem-
bers make the gffort to write
up a resolution like that. And
certainly we are glad that the
records have been preserved to
give up a glimpse into what we
have always heard termed ‘gra-
cious living.’

Names which predominated the
organization’s early history
are synonymous with those ac-
tive in the political and
civic activities of the Town
at that time: names such as
Byam, Lapham, Garland, Dupee,
Bickford, Hutchins, Park and
Battles.

The firmness of the founda-
tion of this organization is
realized when it is noted that

today, after three-quarters of §

a century, the organization is

still using the same Preamble
as its guiding force. The or-
ganization has ever been will-
ing and eager to sponsor and
support any project for civic
improvement. Now in 1955 the
V.I.A. is more active than

tist Pond. The area was pur-
chased by the V.I.A. last year
and every effort has been made
to develop a family picnic and
bathing area where safety and
cleanliness are the watchwords.
Much is still left to be done
and more land must be acquired
before the present dreams of
the association can become
reality, but there is no doubt
about the final outcome be-
cause now, 75 years later, the
membership of the South Chelms-
ford village Improvement As-
sociation is still an ‘enter-
prising, ambitious people and
desirous of making a mark in
1ife.”

ever, with a larger membership \,u'

enabling it to spread its ef-
forts farther to keep pace with
one of the fastest growing
communities in the area. Still
intent upon improving the vil-
lage, perhaps the most import-
ant work of the organization
at the present time is centered
at the bathing beach at Bap-

The Rev.Wilkes Allen, Minister
of the First Congregationd
church, Center, 1803-1832, anl

author of the town's
tory. (published 1820).
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